
  
 

AGENDA 
Tues., Oct. 6, 2009, 6:00 PM 

City Hall, Room B-7 
(Please Note Room Change) 

 
I. Roll Call: Bame, Bauer, Bixby, Brenden, Dettloff, Harlow, Hartnett, Johnson, 

Kutscher, Shaw, Silver, Sneddon, Stuart, Sullivan, Whiteside 
 

II. Public Comments: 
An opportunity for the public to comment on any item of interest, either in general or 
specific to this agenda, that is within the subject matter or jurisdiction of the Commission. 
Comments will be limited to no more than 3 minutes.  Speakers are encouraged to submit 
their comments in writing.  Each Commission Member will receive a copy of all the 
submitted comments. 

 
III. PowerPoint presentation on Elected Official and the City Charter – Raphe 

Sonenshein 
 

IV. Discussion and possible Sections 300, 302, 304, 305, 306, 309, 310, 311, & 800 of the City 
Charter which relate to the city’s elected offices.  Potential action on the following: 
 

• Review Section 300 to consider changing the the office of Mayor to 
directly elected 

• Review Section 302 to consider changing the compensation for the Mayor 
and Council 

• Review Sections 304-305 for possible changes in the proceedings of the 
Council or the duties of the Presiding Officer 

• Review Section 306 for any potential changes in the designation or duties 
of the Mayor Pro Tempore  

• Review section 300 to consider changing the office of City Clerk from 
elected to appointed 

• Review Section 310 for potential changes in the qualifications, powers, 
and duties of the City Clerk 

• Review section 300 to consider changing the office of City Treasurer from 
elected to appointed 

• Review Section 311 for potential changes in the qualifications, powers, 
and duties of the City Treasurer 



 
 

*  Material Related to the Charter Sections to be discussed and submitted prior to the posting of the 
agenda will be included in the Agenda Packet.  Items received after posting of the agenda will be 
distributed at the Commission meeting as late communications. 

• Review section 300 to consider changing the office of City Attorney from 
elected to appointed 

• Review Section 309 for potential changes in the qualifications, powers, 
and duties of the City Attorney. 

• Review Section 800 for potential changes that may be needed in 
transitioning the elective offices. 

V. Commissioner Requests:  Questions, comments, or suggestions for discussion 
at a subsequent meeting of the Commission 

 
VI. Adjourn to the next regular meeting scheduled for Tuesday, October 19 at 6 PM 

in Room B-8 of City Hall. 
 

Attachments: * 
 

1. Powerpoint presentation on Elected Officials and the City Charter 
2. A spreadsheet providing data for other cities on the Mayor and Council  
3. A spreadsheet providing data for other cities on their City Clerk, City 

Treasurer, and City Attorney 
4. Information & Recommendations Provided by Commissioner Bixby 
5. Information from City Attorney, Jennifer McGrath 



  
 

ACTION MINUTES 
Tues., Sept.1, 2009, 6:00 PM 

 
I. Roll Call: Bame, Bauer, Bixby, Brenden, Dettloff, Harlow, Hartnett, Johnson, Kutscher, 

Shaw, Silver, Sneddon, Stuart, Sullivan, Whiteside 
(All present except Bame) 
 

II. Public Comments 
An opportunity for the public to comment on any item of interest, either in general or 
specific to this agenda, that is within the subject matter or jurisdiction of the Commission. 
Comments will be limited to no more than 3 minutes.  Speakers are encouraged to submit 
their comments in writing.  Each Commission Member will receive a copy of all the 
submitted comments. 

Two speakers: 
• Richare Hart spoke in opposition to amending Section 605 of the Charter.  His letter was in 

the agenda packet. 
• Jim Adams distributed information in support of including a prevailing wages provision in 

the City Charter. 
 

III. Approval of Minutes August 18 (Bauer, Hartnett, Silver, & Stuart absent) 
On motion from Dettloff and second from Sullivan the minutes were approved 14-0-1 as 
submitted.  

 
IV. Review and Approval of the Charter Review Timeline 

On motion from Shaw and second from Sneddon the Timeline schedule was approved as 
submitted. 

 
V. Proposed Criteria for Charter Measures and Process for Public Meetings – Sonenshein 

The facilitator, Raphe Sonenshein, provided background on the purpose of Charters and the 
criteria for charter measuers.  No action was taken.  Later in the meeting he provided 
recommendations on conduct of the Commission’s public meetings. 

 
VI. Review Charter Sections 303, 308, 312, 313, 500-503, 600-602, 605, 607-611, 615-616, and 

802-803 for review and possible straw votes on recommended amendments  - Sonenshein 
and City Staff 

The commission reviewed the above sections of the charter and the following actions were taken: 
 
Section 303 Meetings and Location With regard to closed sessions, after discussion 
about the Brown Act and current city practice, a motion was made by Sullivan and seconded by 
Hartnet to keep this section as is except for language updates.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 303 Meetings and Location  With regard to publishing meeting notices, a 
motion was made by Silver, seconded by Sneddon to strike outdated references to publication of 
meetings through outdated sources such as telegram and radio and word it in such a way that it 
can be adapted with changes in technology.  The motion carried 14-0- 
 



Charter Review Commission Minutes 09-01-09  2 
 

Section 303 Meetings and Location With regard to posting of agendas and minutes, 
following discussion of current city practice with regard to posting of the City Council agendas and 
minutes as well as those of the boards, commissions, and committees, a motion was made by 
Silver seconded by Shaw to rewrite the requirements for posting of agenda materials and minutes 
to require the broadest possible availability of these materials as practically possible.  The motion 
carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 308 Official Bonds  Following discussion, a motion was made by Silver and 
seconded by Dettloff to keep this section as is except for language updates and to bring current 
with State Law.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 312 Vacancies, Forfeitures and Replacement Following discussions about the 
meaning of moral turpitude and the intent of this section, a motion was made by Shaw and 
seconded by Silver form the following section “If an elected city officer is convicted of a crime 
involving moral turpitude or ceases to be an elector of the city, the office shall become vacant, 
make the following changes stike “is convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude” and replace 
them with language reflecting the following, “pleads no contest, is convicted of a felony, regardless 
of whether they file an appeal of the conviction,”  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
EXAMPLE: 
“If an elected city officer is convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude pleads no contest, is 
convicted of a felony, regardless of whether they file an appeal of the conviction, or ceases to be 
an elector of the city, the office shall become vacant. 
 
Section 313(b) Nepotism – After some discussion a motion was made by Silver and seconded 
by Kutscher to keep this section as is except for language updates.  The motion carried 12-2-1 
(Bixby, Shaw opposed) 
 
Section 500(a) Regular Ordinances The City Clerk, Joan Flynn requested the Commission 
consider changing the requirement for a second reading by title.  Ordinances would still be 
brought to the Council for Introduction and a second reading but no longer read by title at the 
second reading. 
 
A motion was made by Shaw and seconded by Sneddon to strike the requirement that ordinances 
be read by title at their second reading.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
EXAMPLE: 
“Upon introduction and second reading, an ordinance shall be read by title only.” 
 
Section 500(c) Publication of Ordinances  Current language requires publication in a 
newspaper published and generally circulated in the city.  The City Clerk requested a change in 
the publication requirements to allow for other forms of posting.  A motion was made by Stuart and 
seconded by Kutscher to rewrite this section to allow posting of ordinances in a way that would 
provide the widest distribution possible.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 501 Emergency Ordinance  Following some discussion, a motion was made by 
Bixby and seconded by Sullivan to amend this section so that emergency ordinance would 
automatically be repealed after 120 days.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 502  Resolutions  After some discussion a motion was made by Silver and seconded 
by Sneddon to keep this section as is except for language updates.   
 



Charter Review Commission Minutes 09-01-09  3 
 

Sections 600 Fiscal Year The current Charter calls for a fiscal year of July 1 to June 30.  
The current function fiscal year is based on the State’s fiscal year of October 1 to September 30.  
Staff requested that the Commission remove the dates and allow the fiscal year to be set by 
ordinance or resolution.  A motion was made by Sneddon and seconded by Dettloff to remove the 
dates for the fiscal year and provide language to allow the City Council to set it by ordinance or 
resolution.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 602 Annual Budget Preparation  Staff requested the Commission amend the 
Charter to allow the budget to be submitted to the Council 30 rather than 60 days prior to the 
beginning of each fiscal year. 
 
A motion was made by Sullivan and seconded by Hartnett to amend this section of the Charter to 
require that the budget be submitted to the City Council at least 30 days prior to the beginning of 
each fiscal year.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 605 Annual Budget Appropriations - After some discussion a motion was made by 
Sullivan and seconded by Shaw to keep this section as is except for language updates.   
 
Sections 607, 608, 610, & 611 Taxes and Bonds.  A motion was made by Sneddon and 
seconded by Brendan to continue these items to allow the City Attorney time to research current 
state legal requirements.  No date was set for them to be brought back. The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 609 Real Estate Transfer Tax After some discussion a motion was made by 
Sullivan and seconded by Johnson to keep this section as is except for language updates.   
 
Section 615 Granting of Franchises (Commissioner Harlow recused himself from this 
discussion because of a possible conflict.)  A motion was made by Bixby and seconded by Shaw 
to amend the Charter to require that franchises not exceed 25 years and always state a term.  
Concerns were raised by city staff that such a change would limit the city’s ability to negotiate the 
best terms for the city.  After some discussion, the motion failed 12-1-2 (Bixby opposed). 
 
A second motion was made by Sneddon and seconded by Stuart to keep this section as is except 
for language updates.  The motion carried 12-1-2 (Bixby opposed). 
 
Section 616 Independent Audit a motion was made by Stuart and seconded by Sullivan to 
keep this section as is except for language updates.  The motion carried 14-0-1. 
 
Section 802 Violations A motion was made by Silver to eliminate the $500 fine and 
allow it to be set by ordinance.  Discussion ensued without a second.  A second motion was made 
by Dettloff and seconded by Kutscher to strike the wording specifying a $500 fine and 
imprisonment and leave only the following:  “The violation of any provision of this Charter shall be 
a misdemeanor.”   The motion carried 14-0-1 
 
Commissioner Stuart expressed a concern about the value of the Commission’s work if it can be 
ignored.  He suggested that the revised charter include a preamble stating its importance.  It was 
also suggested that a requirement be included in the Charter for a set review period. 
 
Section 803 Property Rights Protection Measure a motion was made by Whiteside and 
seconded by Sneddon to keep this section as is except for language updates. 
 

VII. Commissioner Requests:  Questions, comments, or suggestions for discussion at a 
subsequent meeting of the Commission 



Charter Review Commission Minutes 09-01-09  4 
 

Commissioner Silver asked that there be discussion about city’s reserve policy when the 
Commission addresses Section 617 (Infrastructure Fund) in February.  He noted that there was a 
Council Study Session on Aug. 17 in which there was discussion about changing the distribution 
of unreserved/undesignated funds each year.  These changes will be included in the city budget at 
the next Council meeting. 
 

VIII. Adjourn to the next scheduled meeting at 6 PM on Tues., September 15 in the City Council 
Chambers to take public testimony on Sections 300, 302, 304, 305, 306, 309, 310, 311, & 800 
which relate to the city’s elected office. 



  
 

*  Material related to the Charter Sections to be discussed and submitted prior to the posting of the 
agenda will be included in the agenda packet.  Items received after posting of the agenda will be 
distributed at the Commission meeting as late communications. 

ACTION MINUTES 
Tues., Sept.15, 2009, 6:00 PM 

City Hall, City Council Chambers 
 

I. Roll Call: Bame, Bauer, Bixby, Brenden, Dettloff, Harlow, Hartnett, Johnson, 
Kutscher, Shaw, Silver, Sneddon, Stuart, Sullivan, Whiteside 

All Present   
II. Public Comments – The Commission has scheduled this public meeting to hear 

the public’s thoughts on City Charter Sections 300, 302, 304, 305, 306, 309, 310, 311, 
& 800 which relate to the city’s elected offices.  Nonetheless, comments on any section 
of the Charter are welcome. 
 

An opportunity for the public to comment on any item of interest, either in general or 
specific to this agenda, that is within the subject matter or jurisdiction of the Commission. 
Comments will be limited to no more than 3 minutes.  Speakers are encouraged to submit 
their comments in writing.  Each Commission Member will receive a copy of all the 
submitted comments. 

 
There were 13 Speakers: 

• Keith Bohr 
• Richard Hart 
• Clem Dominguez 
• Robert Dettloff 
• Julie Bixby 
• Fred Speaker 
• Ed Kerins 

• Rich Meyer 
• William O’Connell 
• Shari Freidenrich 
• Kreg Muller 
• Joan Flynn 
• Victor Leipzig 

III. Commissioner Requests:  Questions, comments, or suggestions for discussion 
at a subsequent meeting of the Commission 

Commissioner Shaw requested that staff provide the cost for a charter amendment 
election and the cost for staff time to support the Commission’s work.  City Clerk, 
Joan Flynn, provided the estimated election costs. 

 
IV. Adjourn to the next scheduled meeting at 6 PM on Tues., Oct. 6 to discuss 

Sections 300, 302, 304, 305, 306, 309, 310, 311, & 800 which relate to the city’s elected 
offices. 
 

Attachments: * 
 

Information Items submitted by Mayor Keith Bohr 
1. List of California Cities with a Directly Elected Mayor 
2. List of the 25 Largest California Cities  



Elected Officials and the Charter

Prepared by Raphael J. Sonenshein, 
Consultant 

For the Huntington Beach Charter Reform 
Commission Meeting, October 6, 2009



The Strong Mayor Council System

MAYOR COUNCIL

DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT



The Commission Plan

MAYOR COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER

DEPT DEPT DEPT DEPT DEPT



The Council Manager 

City Council

City Manager



Concessions by the systems

• Mayor council adds an administrator

• Council manager adds an elected mayor

• But…the administrator is usually not a city 
manager, and the elected mayor is usually not 
a strong mayor



Attorney, Clerk, Treasurer

• Reformers tend to oppose election of all but 
council and mayor

• But voters often like to elect other offices

• Most common and oldest are clerk and 
treasurer at all city sizes

• Elected attorney rarer and more common on 
larger and middle sized cities



How California Cities Do It: the Big 8

• Population range: 420,183 – 4,045,873

• Charter cities

• all have directly elected mayors

• most have strong mayors in mayor‐council system

• half of all of California's elected city attorneys are 
in the Big 8 (5/11)

• few elected clerks and treasurers

• district elections for council are common



How California Cities Do It: The Upper 
Middle

• 27 cities, population range   147,897 ‐ 353,184

• charter cities: 18/27

• directly elected mayors: 20/27

• mayors with some powers beyond appointment of 
commissioners:  Riverside and San Bernardino

• weak mayors directly elected: 18 elected 

• city attorneys: 3/27 Big 8 and Upper Middle account for 8/11 
of all elected city attorneys in the state

• elected clerks: 9/27; elected treasurers:  9/27, all in the same 
cities as the elected clerks



How California Cities Do It: The Rest

• Number of cities: 437

• Population range: 95‐147,428

• charter cities: 61 

• directly elected mayors: 119

• elected city attorneys: 3 

• elected city clerks: 138 

• elected city treasurers: 164 



Observations

• Strong mayor system, as in Big 8 cities, is not relevant to HB 
deliberations

• If HB adopts directly elected mayor, the weak mayor model 
variant of council‐manager system is more relevant

• Not much reform wisdom on the other offices; local 

experience decides. Long run likely to trend toward 

appointed but there is no rush.



MAYORS' INFORMATION 

CITY POPULATION MAYOR CHARTER MAYOR'S POWERS
COUNCIL 

ELECTED BY 
DISTRICT

NOMINATED BY 
DISTRICT/ ELECTED AT-

LARGE1 Los Angeles 4,045,873 elected charter strong mayor; appoint and remove CAO; veto; appointments; budget Council by district

2 San Diego 1,336,865 elected charter strong mayor; appoint and remove city manager; veto; appointments; budget; trial period 06-10 District
3 San Jose 989,496 elected charter weak mayor; presides over council; nominates city manager for council approval District
4 San Francisco 824,525 elected charter strong mayor; veto; appointments; budget
5 Long Beach 492,642 elected charter mayor presides over council; veto; shares in appointment and removal of city manager District
6 Fresno 489,171 elected charter mayor council system, but with city manager District
7 Sacramento 475,743 elected charter on ballot 2010 to consider strong mayor form of government District
8 Oakland 420,183 elected charter strong mayor; appoint and remove city administrator; appointments; budget District

9 Santa Ana 353,184 elected charter mayor serves as one council member; no special powers; city manager administers nom by district; elect at large

10 Anaheim 346,823 elected charter mayor serves as one of five council members; no special powers; city manager administers
11 Bakersfield 328,692 elected charter mayor serves on the council; no special powers; city manager administers District
12 Riverside 296,842 elected charter mayor presides over council; veto power; city manager administers District

13 Stockton 289,927 elected charter mayor presides over council; some limited appointment and budget roles; city manager administers nom by district; elect at large
14 Chula Vista 231,305 elected charter mayor is a member of the council; no special powers; city manager administers
15 Fremont 213,512 elected mayor is a member of the council; city manager administers

16 Modesto 209,936 elected charter mayor is on council; some limited powers similar to Stockton District (2009)
17 Irvine 209,806 elected charter mayor is on council; no special powers; city manager administers
18 Glendale 207,157 charter traditional council-manager government
19 San Bernardino 205,493 elected charter mayor appoints city manager; veto power District

20 Huntington Beach 201,993 charter
traditional council-manager government; council must approve appointment & removal of 
dept heads

21 Oxnard 194,905 elected mayor is a member of the council; no special powers; city manager administers
22 Fontana 188,498 elected mayor is a member of the council; no special powers; city manager administers

Page 1

y p p y g
23 Moreno Valley 183,860 mayor is a member of the council; no special powers; city manager administers District
24 Oceanside 178,806 elected presiding officer, ceremonial head, no special powers
25 Santa Clarita 177,045 traditional council-manager government
26 Rancho Cucamonga 174,308 presiding officer, ceremonial head, no special powers
27 Ontario 173,690 elected presides over meetings, official head, no special powers

28 Garden Grove 173,067 mayor serves as one of five council members; no special powers; city manager administers
29 Pomona 163,405 elected charter mayor serves as one council member; ceremonial head; city manager administers District

30 Santa Rosa 159,981 charter
presides over meetings, w/mgr establishes the agenda, appoints council members to city, regional, 
& state bodies

31 Salinas 150,898 elected charter presiding officer, official head, no special powers District
32 Hayward 149,205 elected charter presiding officer, voting member of Council, no special powers
33 Torrance 148,965 elected charter presiding officer voting member of Council, signs contracts and warrants of the city
34 Pasadena 148,126 elected charter presiding officer, official head, ceo of the city under the terms of general laws of the state District
35 Palmdale 147,897 elected presiding officer, appoints all board & commission members w/ Council approval

39 Orange 140,849 elected presiding officer, voting member of Council, no special powers
42 Fullerton 137,437 presiding officer, voting member of Council, no special powers
77 Westminster 93,027 elected presiding officer, voting member of Council, no special powers
81 Santa Barbara 90,305 elected charter presiding officer, voting member of Council, no special powers
88 Newport Beach 84,554 charter presiding officer, voting member of Council, no special powers nom by district; elect at large

Page 1



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

A B C D E F G

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41

29 Pomona 163 405 charter

CITY POPULATION CHARTER? CITY ATTORNEY CITY CLERK CITY TREASURER
1 Los Angeles 4,045,873 charter elected
2 San Diego 1,336,865 charter elected
3 San Jose 989,496 charter
4 San Francisco 824,525 charter elected elected
5 Long Beach 492,642 charter elected
6 Fresno 489,171 charter
7 Sacramento 475,743 charter
8 Oakland 420,183 charter elected
9 Santa Ana 353,184 charter
10 Anaheim 346,823 charter
11 Bakersfield 328,692 charter
12 Riverside 296,842 charter
13 Stockton 289,927 charter
14 Chula Vista 231,305 charter elected
15 Fremont 213,512
16 Modesto 209,936 charter
17 Irvine 209,806 charter
18 Glendale 207,157 charter elected elected
19 San Bernardino 205,493 charter elected elected elected
20 Huntington Beach 201,993 charter elected elected elected
21 Oxnard 194,905 elected elected
22 Fontana 188,498 elected elected
23 Moreno Valley 183,860
24 Oceanside 178,806 elected elected
25 Santa Clarita 177,045
26 Rancho Cucamonga 174,308 elected elected
27 Ontario 173,690 elected elected
28 Garden Grove 173,067
29 Pomona 163 405, charter
30 Santa Rosa 159,981 charter
31 Salinas 150,898 charter
32 Hayward 149,205 charter
33 Torrance 148,965 charter elected elected
34 Pasadena 148,126 charter
35 Palmdale 147,897
39 Orange 140,849 elected elected
42 Fullerton 137,437
77 Westminster 93,027
81 Santa Barbara 90,305 charter
88 Newport Beach 84,554 charter



 
 
COMMISSIONER BIXBY’S PROPOSALS: 
 

Attached is information submitted by Commissioner 
Mark Bixby that relates to the Charter Sections 
scheduled for the Commission’s October 6 Meeting.   

 

The Charter Sections scheduled for October 6 are:  
300, 302, 304, 305, 306, 309, 310, 311, & 800 
which relate to the city’s elected offices 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 1 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

SUBMITTED TO: HB Charter Review Commission  

SUBMITTED BY: Mark D. Bixby, Charter Review Commissioner 

SUBJECT: Amend charter section 300 (City Council, Attorney, Clerk 
and Treasurer Terms) to provide for appointed attorney and 
treasurer, but to retain an elected clerk. 

 
 
Statement of Issue: Convert certain elected officers to appointed. 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to: 
 
Amend Huntington Beach charter section 300 as follows: 
 

• Change city attorney to be appointed or removed by the city administrator 
subject to approval by the city council under existing charter section 401(a) 
but also subject to recall by a vote of the electors 

• Change city treasurer to be appointed or removed by the city administrator 
subject to approval by the city council under existing charter section 401(a) 
but also subject to recall by a vote of the electors 

• Keep city clerk as an elected officer 
• Structure the charter revision ballot to split off all elected-to-appointed 

changes as separate ballot items 
 
Analysis: 
 
The city attorney and the city treasurer both serve city hall nearly exclusively 
rather than the public and thus should be converted from elected to appointed 
positions.   
 
The city clerk however has evolved critically important public-facing 
responsibilities in addition to serving as council record keeper and so should 
remain an elected position answerable to the public served by the clerk.  During the 
10 years I have lived in Huntington Beach, the city clerk has been the biggest 
driver of municipal transparency and provides some of the best public customer 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 2 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

service of any city department.  Key public-facing responsibilities of the city clerk 
currently include: 
 

• Creation and distribution of city council agendas that surpass most other 
cities for detail and quality. 

• Creation and distribution of city council minutes essential for retaining 
historical perspective. 

• Internet publication of council agendas, minutes, audio, and video. 
• Collection and distribution of campaign finance disclosure statements, and 

partial Internet publication of these statements. 
• Collection and distribution of economic interest statements. 
• Internet publication of nearly the entire city clerk historical record archive 

via the SIRE system. 
• Serves as an impartial election official, with an unbiased approach to the 

candidacy process. 
• Serves as an impartial office for individuals to file claims against the city, 

and for the serving of summons. 
• Conducts public outreach efforts centering on education as to the public’s 

right to access their records, election information, and voter registration. 
 
Furthermore, the city clerk’s department is willing to assist other city departments 
in migrating to the SIRE electronic document management system, which offers 
the possibility of even greater transparency to benefit the public. 
 
If the city clerk were appointed rather than elected, changing priorities at city hall 
could be imposed on the city clerk resulting in lessened transparency that would be 
harmful to the public.  The inherent politics of appointed positions could also result 
in reduced impartiality.  Whereas if the city clerk continues to be an elected 
official, the clerk would have to answer directly to the public at election time for 
any lapses in transparency or impartiality.  The public’s leverage at election time is 
the last defense on behalf of transparency and impartiality.  Thus it is my strong 
preference that the city clerk remains elected. 
 
An examination of city election history from 1913 to present (see attached) shows 
that the topic of converting the elected attorney, clerk, and treasurer to appointed 
positions keeps coming up again and again and again.  A sampling of associated 
ballot arguments (see attached) shows that the current and former councilmembers 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 3 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

at the time were often highly split over these measures.  And every time these 
measures are submitted to the electors, they go down to defeat: 
 

• Measures to convert the attorney have been defeated 7 times 
• Measures to convert the clerk have been defeated 4 times 
• Measures to convert the treasurer have been defeated 5 times 

 
Clearly Huntington Beach voters have their minds set on this issue.  And it is my 
opinion that the current extreme antipathy towards state and national politicians 
makes it extremely unlikely that the voters will change their minds in 2010 and 
relinquish electoral control over these three city offices. 
 
So what should be done to improve the chances of success if the charter review 
commission (and the city council) wants to move forward with these conversions? 
 
One idea that should be considered is that even though these may be converted to 
appointed positions, the public should be given the right of recall to still be able to 
exercise control if an appointment turned out badly.  This was actually done in the 
11/05/1968 election measure to convert the attorney to appointed, but still it was 
defeated.  But this may simply have been due to voter fatigue, since just seven 
months earlier on 04/09/1968 there was yet another election at which the appointed 
attorney, clerk, and treasurer all went down to defeat.  And four years earlier on 
11/03/1964 yet another appointed attorney measure went down to defeat.  So I 
suspect the voters were just tired and didn’t want to deal with it any more. 
 
My recommendation to the commission is that any conversions to appointed 
positions try again by making them subject to recall by the people in order to 
increase the chances for adoption. 
 
But even providing for recall may not be enough to convert these positions to 
appointed, given the long electoral history of defeats.  Including these conversions 
within a single charter revision measure that replaces the entire charter could likely 
prove to be a “poison pill” that would doom the entire charter revision to defeat. 
 
Fortunately the historical record provides a solution for avoiding the “poison pill” 
problem.  The 1978 charter revision effort largely revised the entire charter.  But in 
recognition of the controversial nature of several amendments, including 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 4 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

converting the attorney, clerk, and treasurer to appointed, the ballot for the 
06/06/1978 election (see attached) was very cleverly organized.  The main measure 
on the ballot was for replacing the entire charter except for the controversial 
sections amended in subsequent measures on the same ballot.  This proved to be a 
wise decision, because the main measure passed to revise nearly the entire charter, 
and all but one of the controversial auxiliary measures went down to defeat. 
 
I strongly recommend that the commission adopt a similar ballot strategy for any 
controversial issues if possible. 
 
Attachment(s): 
 

• City elections summary (1913 to present) 
• 06/06/1978 ballot measures 
• 06/06/1978 ballot arguments 
• 11/06/1984 ballot arguments 
• 03/26/1996 ballot arguments 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 5 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

 
 
 
 
 

City Election Summary 
 

1913 to Present 



Election Type Result Summary
7/15/1913 proposition adopted park/music/advertising tax
4/13/1914 proposition adopted board of trustees meeting pay

12/28/1915 proposition adopted bonded debt limit
4/10/1922 proposition adopted board of trustees monthly pay
8/21/1922 proposition defeated ordinance 209 amendment
4/12/1926 proposition adopted ordinance 209 amendment establishing business & residential districts

11/16/1926 proposition adopted ordinance 209 amendment
4/9/1928 proposition adopted city council monthly pay

4/14/1930 proposition defeated business district boundary change
4/14/1936 proposition adopted exceed 5% limit to construct a beach pavilion
4/14/1936 proposition defeated construct a beach bowl
4/14/1936 proposition defeated civil service for police & fire
4/14/1936 proposition adopted municipal water system
11/3/1936 initiative canvass missing business licensing
4/29/1937 proposition adopted charter adoption
4/29/1937 proposition defeated council districting
8/3/1937 proposition adopted elected city judge & city attorney
8/3/1937 proposition adopted elected police chief

4/12/1938 proposition adopted park construction debt
9/27/1939 proposition defeated municipal water system debt

11/21/1939 proposition adopted charter amendment to create board of education
4/14/1942 proposition adopted charter amendment - city council meetings
4/14/1942 proposition adopted charter amendment - appointee qualifications
4/14/1942 proposition adopted charter amendment - vacancy appointments
4/14/1942 proposition adopted charter amendment - public works contracting
4/14/1942 proposition adopted charter amendment - special taxes
4/14/1942 initiative defeated close dance halls between midnight and 8AM (resolution 898)
4/9/1946 proposition adopted charter amendment - public works contracting

4/13/1948 proposition defeated charter amendment - council-manager form of government
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - general law
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - canvassing
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - city council meetings
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - ordinance publication
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - mayor vacancy
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - public works contracting
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - special taxes
4/13/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - franchises
11/2/1948 proposition defeated charter amendment - department of public service
11/2/1948 proposition adopted charter amendment - appointed city judge
11/2/1948 proposition adopted repeal ordinance 396 (business license tax)
9/14/1954 proposition adopted water bond
4/8/1958 proposition defeated city council monthly pay
4/8/1958 proposition defeated appointed chief of police
4/8/1958 proposition defeated appointed city attorney
6/9/1959 referendum defeated ordinance 706 (zoning plan) [defeat of a referendum means the ordinance was not adopted]



4/10/1962 proposition adopted city council monthly pay
4/30/1963 proposition adopted water bond
11/3/1964 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city attorney
11/3/1964 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed police chief
8/10/1965 proposition defeated charter amendment - districting and elected mayor
1/11/1966 proposition adopted new charter
4/9/1968 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city attorney
4/9/1968 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city treasurer
4/9/1968 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city clerk

11/5/1968 proposition defeated park bond
11/5/1968 proposition defeated library bond
11/5/1968 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city attorney with recall
6/3/1969 proposition adopted park bond

11/3/1970 proposition defeated charter amendment - elected mayor
11/3/1970 proposition adopted charter amendment - public works contracting
11/3/1970 proposition adopted charter amendment - general obligation bonds
11/3/1970 proposition adopted charter amendment - elections
6/6/1972 proposition adopted water fluoridation
6/6/1972 proposition defeated charter amendment - compensation for city council, city clerk, city treasurer

11/6/1973 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city attorney
11/6/1973 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city clerk
11/6/1973 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city treasurer
11/5/1974 proposition canvass missing replace real property transfer tax with monthly trash charge and increased utilities tax
5/27/1975 proposition adopted charter amendment - real property transfer tax to require voter approval
11/2/1976 proposition adopted charter amendment - city council 3/4 vote required to levy tax or fee (takes precendence due to larger nu
11/2/1976 proposition adopted charter amendment - city council 5 votes required to enact tax or revenue raising measure
6/6/1978 proposition adopted new charter
6/6/1978 proposition adopted charter amendment - city council term limits
6/6/1978 proposition defeated charter amendment - city council compensation
6/6/1978 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city attorney
6/6/1978 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city clerk
6/6/1978 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city treasurer
6/3/1980 advisory canvass missing shall the state dedicate 2 cents of the 6 cent sales tax for local agencies?

11/2/1982 proposition adopted charter amendment - consolidate municipal general election with statewide elections in November
11/6/1984 proposition defeated charter amendment - remove term limits
11/6/1984 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city clerk
11/6/1984 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city treasurer
11/6/1984 proposition adopted charter amendment - city clerk additional minimum qualifications
11/6/1984 proposition adopted charter amendment - city treasurer additional minimum qualifications
11/8/1988 initiative defeated Citizen's Sensible Growth and Traffic Control Initiative
11/6/1990 initiative adopted charter amendment - Measure C park protections (takes precedence due to larger number of votes rece
11/6/1990 proposition adopted charter amendment - park/beach sale restrictions
3/26/1996 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city treasurer
3/26/1996 proposition defeated charter amendment - appointed city attorney
3/26/1996 advisory defeated park/beach/sports/senior parcel tax
11/5/1996 advisory defeated sports-related parcel tax



11/5/1996 proposition defeated Murdy Park enhancements
11/5/1996 proposition adopted Huntington Central Park sports complex
3/7/2000 initiative defeated build houses instead of WalMart at Crest View School site
3/7/2000 advisory adopted use WalMart sales tax to fund sports and other activities

11/7/2000 proposition defeated power plants (AES) to pay utility tax
11/7/2000 advisory adopted utility taxes paid by power plants to fund infrastructure improvements
3/5/2002 initiative adopted charter amendment - forbid rent control
3/5/2002 proposition adopted charter amendment - establish infrastructure fund
3/5/2002 advisory adopted power plant utility taxes directed to infrastructure fund
3/5/2002 proposition defeated repeal the Gas Tax exclusion for electric power plants
3/2/2004 initiative defeated charter amendment - city council districts

11/7/2006 proposition adopted senior center



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 6 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

 
 
 
 
 

06/06/1978 Ballot Measures 



I

I

I
bc

RESOLUTION NO. 4603

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF HUNTINGTON BEACH ORDERING, CALLING, PRO
VIDING FOR AND GIVING NOTICE OF A SPECIAL
MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD IN SAID CITY ON
JUNE 6, 1978 FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO
THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF SAID CITY MEASURES CON
CERNING A REVISED CHARTER AND CONSOLIDATING SAID
ELECTION WITH THE STATEWIDE PRIMARY ELECTION TO
BE HELD ON SAID DATE

The City Council of the City of Huntington Beach does

hereby resolve, declare, determine and order as follows:

SECTION 1. That a special election be held and the same

is hereby called to be held in said city on June 6, 1978, for

the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of said city

a proposition to appear on the ballot as follows:

Rest of page not used.

1.



r

I MEASURES SUBMITTED TO VOTE OF VOTERS

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS

A Shall the existing charter, with the
exception of the provisions mentioned YES
in Propositions B through F on this
ballot, of the City of Huntington Beach~' ~~ __
be repealed and in place thereof shall '
the proposed charter provisions
approved by the City Council on NO
January 30, 1978, be adopted?

I

B Shall Section 500 of the existing YES
city charter be amended to provide
that no person shall be elected to the '
Council for more than two consecutive NO
terms?

C Shall Section 502 of the existing
city charter be amended to provide
that the compensation for the Mayor YES
and the City Council members be set
in accordance with a sliding scale
based upon the population of the city
so that compensation may vary from a
minimum of $400 per month to a maximum '
of $600 per month, and further pro- NO
viding for reimbursement of certain
specified expenses in addition to
such monthly compensation?

I
D Shall Sections 500 and 703 of the

existing city charter, which now pro
vide for the election of the City
Attorney by the qualified voters of

2.

YES



r

I the city at large~ be amended to pro
vide that the City Attorney be
appointed by the City Administrator
with the approval of the City Council? '

NO

E Shall Sections 500 and 704 of the
existing city charter~ which now pro
vide for the election of the City
Clerk by the qualified voters of the
city at large~ be amended to provide
that the City Clerk be appointed by
the City Administrator with the
approval of the City Council? ,

,.

YES

NO

I

I

F Shall Sections 500 and 705 of the
existing city charter~ which now pro- YES
vide for the election of the City
Treasurer by the qualified voters of
the city at large~ be amended to pro-
vide that the City Treasurer be
appointed by the City Administrator NO
with the approval of the City Council? '

.

3.



additional notice of said election in time, form and manner

as required by law.

SECTION 6. That the City Clerk shall certify to the pas

sage and adoption of this resolution; shall enter the same in

the book of original resolutions of said city; and shall make

a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the

proceedings of the City Council of said city, in the minutes of

the meeting at which the same is passed and adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of

Huntington Beach at an -adj 6urnedRegular meeting :held on:the; 13th

day of March, 1978.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

;::~-
Mayor Pro Tempore

4.

City Clerk

REVIEWED AND APPROVED:

ATTEST:

~~,J?r~

I

I

I



Res. No. 4603

Clerk of the City of Huntington Beach, and ex-officio Clerk of the

City Council of said City, do hereby certify that the whole number of

members of the City Council of the City of Huntington Beach is seven;

that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the affirmative

vote of more than a majority of all the members of said City Council

at a regular adjourned meeting thereof held on the 13th day

of March , 19 78 ,by the following vote:

qualified City

City Clerk and ex-officio Clerk
of the City Council of the City
of Huntington Beach, California

Bartlett. Coen. Gibbs. Shenkman

Siebert

Councilmen:

Councilmen:

Councilmen:

Wieder, Pattinson

I, ALICIA M. WENTWORtH, the duly elected,

STNfE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ORANGE ) s s :
CITY OF HUNTINGtON BEACH )

NOES:

AYES:

ABSENT:

I

I

I

r



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 7 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

 
 
 
 
 

06/06/1978 Ballot Arguments 





















REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 8 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

 
 
 
 
 

11/06/1984 Ballot Arguments 



	 677A	
Shall exling City Charter Section 310 be \repealed,
and Sections 300 and 403, which provide for an elected

E City Clerk, be amended to permit the appointment of
the City Clerk by the City Administrator, subject io
approval of the City Council, with duties and powers
prescribed by ordinance?

7)
YES

NO



-MEASURE E *	 •

:PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMEhir

The Charter of the City of Huntington Beach is hereby amended by.repealing
section' 310 -, and amending sections 300 and 403 to read as 1011ows: - 7

-	 ,

Section 300. CITY COUNCIL, ATTORNEY, CLERK AND TREASUR-
ER. TERMS . The elective officers of the City shall consist of a City. Council, of
seven members, a City Clerk, a City Treasurer and a City Attorney, all to be
elected from the City at large at the times and in the manner provided, in this
Charter and who shall serve for ternis of four years and until their respective
successors qualify.

' Subject to the provisions of this Charter, the five members of the City Council
in office at the time this Charter takes effect shall continue in office until the
expiration of their respective terms and until their successors are elected and
qualified, and shall constitute the City Council until two additional members are
elected as hereinafter provided. Four members of the City Council shall be elected
at the general municipal election held' in April, 1966, and each fourth year'
thereafter. Three members of the City Council shall be elected at' the general
municipal election held in April, 1968, and each fourth year thereafter. No person
shall be elected as a Member of the City Council for more than' two consecutive
terms and no person who has been a member for more than two years of a term to
which some other person was elected a member shall be elected to the City Council
more than one further consecutive term.

In the event this Charter shall not take effect in time to elect four members of
the City Council at the general municipal election held in April, 1966, and only
two members of the City Council are then elected, a special election shall be called
and held not less than sixty (60) nor more than ninety (90) days after the effective
date of this Charter to elect two additional members of the City Council for the
remainder of the terms expiring in April, 1970.

Subject to the provisions of this Charter, the City Clerk, City Treasurer and
City Attorney in offiee at the time this Charter takes effect shall continue in office
until the expiration of their respective terms and the qualification of their succes-
sors. A Gity-Clefk-and City Treasurer shall be elected at the general municipal
election held'in April f, 1968, and each fourth year thereafter. A City Attorney shall
be elected in April, 1966, and each fourth year thereafter.

The term of each member of the City Council, the City Clerk, the City
Treasurer and the City Attorney shall commence on the first Monday following his
election. Ties in voting among candidates for office shall, be settled by the casting
of lots.



Section	 CITY CLERK, POWERS AND DLITIESIr o City clerk

•	 .	 • ":.-	 :	 :	 -	 •

Section 403. PERSONNEL. In addition to the City Council, a-Pity-C—lefk-;
a City Treasurer, a City Attorney and City Administrator, the officers and
employees of the City shall consist of such other officers, assistants, deputies and
employees'as the City Council may provide by ordinance or resolution. ,TheCity.
Council shall establish such reasonable compensation and fringe benefits as are
appropriate by ordinance or resolution for such ,officers, officials and employees
except as herein provided.



The City co"---1 shall maintain by ordinance a comprehenrpersonnel
system for the Cit ihe City Administrator, Assistant City Adminiorior and any

, officers designated as elective by the Charter shall be,exempt. The system shall
consist of the establishment of minimum-standards of employment and qualifica-
tions for the _various classes of employment and procedures to, be followed in

ee •

	

	 advancement, demotion, suspension and discharge of employees included within
the system, as the City Council shall determine to be for the best interest of the

114	 public service. The ordinance shall designate the appointive officers and effi-
eh	 ployees who shall be included within the system. By subsequent ordinances the
ee, City Council may amend the system or the list of appointive officers and em-

ployees included within the system, provided, however, that once included within
the system, no officer or employee shall be withdrawn therefroni (unless the office
or position is actually abolished , or eliminated) without the approval of such
withdrawal at a regular Or special election by a majority of the voters' voting on

en•

	

	 such proposition. The system shall comply with all other provisions of this
Charter.

-as

F1(7
tnd
ind
ity
are
es



CITY ATTORNEY'S IMPARTIA)
,	 ANALYSIS OF MEASURE E

The existing City Charter provides for the election of the City Clerk by the
qualified voters of the City at large. The proposed amendment would provide for
the appointment of the City Clerk by the City. Administrator with:the approval of
the City Council with Auties , and powers prescribed by ordinance.



iGUMENT IN FAVOR OF MEASURE E

The City Clerk's position has been an elected position since we were a small
beach community. Since the early part of this century, business .affairs have
become vastly more technical and complicated. Today, the Clerk must be profes-
sionally competent in order to serve the public satisfactorily.

-
The City Clerk's position is responsible for keeping official records; this

includes records of City Council actions, ordinances, resolutions, and official
minutes. This position serves the City Council who is elected by you. The
responsibility of the Clerk is clerical in nature. It is important that the Clerk be a
true professional with proper skills in the area of record retention and retrieval. To
ensure that the residents' expectations for excellence are achieved, it is imperative
that the individual who holds the position possesses those skills and knowledge to
do the job. Continuing the practice of an elected official could shortchange the
citizenry by electing someone who may not have the proper qualifications or
skills. Once elected into the position an individual can rest easy knowing that their
next evaluation is four years away at the next election. In the meantime, the City
Clerk could easily run a poor or mediocre operation being responsible to no one.
-Elections are costly and raising political war chests should not be a Clerk's duty!

An appointed Clerk enables the City Council and Administrator to test for .
professional and skilled management in the Clerk's operation. An appointed Clerk
is subject to evaluation and scrutiny by the City Administrator and the City
Council on a regular basis.

Let's bring Huntington Beach into the 1980's by voting for an appointed City
Clerk position based upon sound business-like practices and demand that the
individual possesses the necessary skills to do the job. Vote yes!

DON MacALLISTER
Councilman

City of Huntington Beach



''JTTAL TO 'ARGUMENT IN FAVOR OF. ASURE E

The public has always voted to keep the City Clerk elected. The fact that only
nine City Clerk's have been elected in 75 years says a lot for the elected profession.

In the State of California, 50% of the 426 City Clerks are elected, including
cities both large and small.

In keeping your City clerk elected, the City clerk is first obligated to the
public and ,acts to maintain proper integrity in keeping records available.

A City Clerk in Huntington Beach has never been elected by having to raise
political war chests, but on merit alone.

By having well trained personnel in the City Clerk's Office, the electorate is
assured that qualified persons are capable of fulfilling the City Clerk's responsibi-
lities as set forth in the City Charter.

Protect your right to elect your City Clerk.

Vote NO on Measure E.

ALICIA M. WENTWORTH -
City Clerk



RGUMENT AGAINST MEASURE E

The City Clerk in Huntington,Beach" has been an elected position since the
incorporation of the City of 1909. In 75 Years, there have been a total of 9 City
Clerks.

The measure has been put on the ballot to be made appointive not less than
four times in the past years and soundly voted down each time by the electorate.

The one conflict that formerly existed is that of conducting the elections
which has been eliminated by the electorates' vote to consolidate with the County.
in November of even numbered years: The County voting precincts, are used and
tabulation is conducted and certified by the County.

Your Elected City Clerk is responsible for maintaining . the official records of
the City and is not in a policy making position. The creation and Maintenance of
public records would be handled by your Elected City Clerk and Huntington Beach
residents would be assured that a competeni City Clerk would be in charge.

Your Elected city Clerk will always run an open, efficient office on a straight
forward basis, impervious to internal pressures.

.. Your Elected City clerk must come to you every four years for reelection. The
information hi the City , Clerk's Office must be readily available to you — The
Voting public:

VOTE NO ON MEASURE E

ALICIA M. WENTWORTH
Your City Clerk with
23 years Experience



Shall exAg City Charter Section 311 be repealed,
and Sections 300 and 403, which provide for an elected 	 YES

F City Treasurer, be amended to perMit the appointment
of the City Treasurer by the City Administrator, sub-
ject'to approval of the City Council, with duties and 	 NO
power ' prescribed by ordinance?



MEASURE- F
PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT

The Charter of the City of Huntington Beach is hereby amended by repealing
Section 311, and amending Sections 300 and 403 to read as, follows:

Section 300. CITY COUNCIL, ATTORNEY, AND CLERK. AND
TREASURER; TERMS. The elective officers of the City shall consist of a City
Council of seven members, a City Clerk, a-Gity-Treasurer and a City Attorney, all
to be elected from the City at large at the times and in the manner provided in this
Charter and who shall serve for terms of four years and until their respectiye
successors qualify.

Subject to the provisions of this Charter, the five members of the City Council
in office at the time this Charter takes effect shall continue in office until the
expiration of their respective terms and until their successors are elected and
qualified, and shall constitute the City Council until two additionemembers are.
elected as hereinafter provided. Four members of the City Council shall be elected
at the general'municipal' election held in , April, 1966, and each fourth year
thereafter. Three members of the City Council, shall be 'elected at the general
municipal election held in April, 1968 96, 'and each fourth year thereafter. No person
shall be elected as a member of the 'City Council for more than two consecutive
terms and no person who has been a member for more than two years of a term to
which some other person was elected a member shall be elected to the City Council
more than one further consecutive term..

In the event this Charter shall not take effect in time to elect four members of
. the City Council at the general municipal election held in April, 1966, and Only:
two members of the City Council are then elected, a special election shall be called
and held not less than sixty (60) nor more than ninety (90) days after the effective
date of this Charter to elect two additional members of the City council for the
remainder of the terms expiring in April, 1970.

Subject to the provisions of this Charter, the City Clerk, City Treasurer and
'City-Attorney in office at the time this Charter takes effect shall continue in office

, until the expiration of their respective terms and the qualification of their succes-
sors. A City Clerk and  shall be elected at the general municipal
election held in April, 1968, and each fourth year thereafter. A City Attorney shall
be elected in April, '1966, and each fourth year thereafter.

The term of each member of the City Council, the City Clerk, the City
Treasurer and the City Attorney shall commence on the first Monday following his
election. Ties in voting among candidates for office shall be settled by the casting
of lots.



SECTION 403. PERSONNEL. In addition to the City Council, a City
Clerk, a-Gity--Treasuref, a-City Attorney and City Administrator, the officers' and
employees of the City shall consist of such other officers; assistants, deputies and
employees as the City Council may provide by ordinance or resolution. The City
Council shall establish such reasonable compensation and fringe benefits as are
appropriate' by ordinance or resolution for such offices, officials, and employees

' except as herein provided.

The City Council shall maintain by ordinance a comprehensive' personnel.
system for the City. The City -Administrator, Assistant City Administrator and any
officers designated is electiVe by the Charter shall be exempt The system shall
Consist of the establishment of minimum' standards of employment' and qualifica=
tions for the various classes of employment and procedures, to be followed in
advancement, demotion, suspension and'discharge of employees included within
the system, as the City Council shall determine to be for the best interest of the



14

Era

Public service. 1,N irdinance shall designate the appointive off. em-
ployees who shall be included within the system. By subsequent ordinances the
City Council. may amend the system or the list of appointive officers and em-
ployees included within the'system, provided, however, that once included within
the system, no Officer or employee shall be withdrawn therefrom (unless the office
or position is actually abolished or eliminated) without the approval of such
withdrawal at a regular or special election by a majority of the voters voting on
such proposition. The system shall comply with: 	 other provisions of this
Charter.



CITY ATTORNEY'S IMPARTIAL nJ.
, ANALYSIS OF MEASURE F

The existing City Charter provides for the election of the City Treasurer by
the qualified yoters of the City at large. The proposed amendment would provide
for the appointment of the City Treasurer by the City Administrator with the
approval of the City Council with duties and powers prescribed by ordinance.



L 'UMENT IN FAVOR OF MEAOURE F

The elected City Treasurer's position is a holdover from the days when our
city was a much smaller and less complex beach community. Today, we are the
10th largest California city with annual revenues which run into $10's of millions.
Technology has had major impacts. It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to.
invest public monies to yieldL the highest return on our tax' dollars. Investment
practices in the public sector are complex and important. Such responsibility needs
to be entrusted to a person knowledgeable and experienced in fiscal affairs and,not
left to someone who, by chance, may get elected. He should not be obligated to
anyone except the public, Elections cost money, and this position should be free of
such obligations. Spokespersons for keeping the position elected may say that not
having an elected Treasurer would remove the control of the public'. Don't be
fooled! This is definitely not the case. The voters do have direct control of the
municipal government through their City Council who have the responsibility to
ensure that community affairs are managed properly. The City Council is ultimate-
ly responsible to see that individuals are employed who possess the professional
knowledge and experience necessary to manage the investments of the city for the
public and not for anyone's individual political whims which could cost the city,
millions. The question that must be asked is, "Do we take the risk of electing
someone with little. experience and training to be responsible for investing our tax
dollars?" Other department heads are appointed, and our'city operates profes-
sionally and business like. I urge each voter to seriously consider making the
Treasurer's position an appointed position responsible to the City Administrator
and to your elected City Council. , Protect the taxpayers' monies. Vote yes!

DON MacALLISTER
Councilman

City of Huntington Beach



RL UTTAL TO ARGUMENT IN FAVOR OF '1....12ASURE F

• The election of Public Fund Treasurers works in California. .

Huntington Beach is in good company.

The Treasurer of California is elected.

The . Treasurer of San Francisco is Elected.

The Treasurer of Orange County is Elected.

The Treasurers Of 412 California cities are Elected, including:

Alameda

Baldwin Park

Burbank

Corona

Glendale - '

Huntington Beach

Inglewood

National City

Orange

Oxnard

San Bernardino

West Covina

and 100 more.

Earlier this year the Treasurer of San Jose lost approximately $170,000,000
by gambling in the Bond Futures Market. He was appointed and was fired along
with the Finance Director and Deputy City Administrator and there are threats of
recall against the City Council. City Couneil control doesn't always work, even
when they are full time, let alone just meeting two night a month.

Vote NO and keep Huntington Beach's Treasurer elected.

WARREN HALL
City Treasurer



1GUMENT AGAINST-MEASURE F

You the people want your City Treasurer elected. 

This is the 5th time in the past 16 years that you the voters have been asked to
make the City Treasurer appointive, not elected.

You are asked to turn it down again as you have 4 times before.

Why?

Your elected City Treasurer knows he has to work for your interest, review-
ing expenditures and earning maximum interest with your available tax funds.

Your elected City Treasurer is responsive to ybur inquiries and problems with
the City.

Your elected City Treasurer enforces the rules, because he must face you for
re-election every 4 years, instead of having a "lifetime, safe job."

A question for you to answer for yourself; why do the City Councils and City
Administrators continously try to get you to eliminate the elected City Treasurer
position?

Vote "NO" on this fifth attempt to remove your right to vote for a responsive
elected City Treasurer.

WARREN G. HALL
Your Responsive City Treasurer

. for over 16 years



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 9 - 9/26/2009 4:19 PM 
 

 
 
 
 
 

03/26/1996 Ballot Arguments 















REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 1 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

SUBMITTED TO: HB Charter Review Commission  

SUBMITTED BY: Mark D. Bixby, Charter Review Commissioner 

SUBJECT: Amend section 302 (Compensation) regarding 
compensation of councilmembers. 

 
 
Statement of Issue: Increase transparency and accountability as well as 
reduce self-interest by making councilmember compensation conform more 
closely to California Government Code pertaining to general law cities. 
 
Recommended Action: Motion to: 
 
Amend Huntington Beach charter section 302 as follows: 
 
The members of the City Council including the Mayor shall receive as 
compensation for their services as such a monthly salary in the sum of One 
Hundred Seventy-five Dollars per month. Compensation for the members of the 
City Council shall be established by ordinance in accordance with provisions of 
Section 36516 the State of California Government Code as such provisions now 
exist or may thereafter be amended.  Total compensation amounts in effect at the 
time this charter is adopted shall remain in effect until changed by subsequent 
ordinance pursuant to this charter section.  The mayor shall be paid additional 
compensation of no greater than thirty-five percent of councilmember 
compensation.  Compensation changes enacted by ordinance shall not apply to 
councilmembers during their terms of office. In addition, each member of the City 
Council shall receive reimbursement on order of the City Council for Council 
authorized traveling and other expenses when on official duty upon submission of 
itemized expense accounts therefor. In addition, members shall receive such 
reasonable and adequate amounts as may be established by ordinance, which 
amounts shall be deemed to be reimbursement to them of other routine and 
ordinary expenses, losses and costs imposed upon them by virtue of their serving 
as City Councilmen. 
 
Alternative Action(s): 
 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 2 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

• Increase or decrease the mayoral compensation differential (35% is the 
current differential as computed below in the analysis) 

• Alter the general law 5% increase limit to be no greater than CPI. 
• Remove the grandfather clause and reset total compensation to some new 

value. 
• Use some percentage of household income to automatically index council 

compensation and/or to set a compensation ceiling. 
 

Analysis: 
 
Charter section 302 currently provides for a direct councilmember salary of $175 
per month, plus reimbursement for itemized official expenses, plus an expense 
allowance that is “deemed to be reimbursement to them of other routine and 
ordinary expenses”.  This latter expense allowance does not require itemized 
reimbursement requests, and is paid unconditionally to councilmembers regardless 
of their actual expenses.  The relevant municipal code section elaborates: 
 

2.28.010 Expense allowance. It is deemed reasonable and adequate 
that in reimbursement of the ordinary and routine expenses, losses and 
costs imposed upon them by virtue of their serving the city in their 
official capacity, each Council Member shall receive monthly, during 
his term of office the sum of $698 per month, and the mayor shall 
receive the sum of $936 per month, such sums to be adjusted annually 
by the consumer price index for all urban consumers, all items, 1982-
84 equals 100, published by the United States Department of Labor, 
Bureau of Labor Statistics, for the Los Angeles/Anaheim/ Riverside 
Metropolitan Area. Further, such expense allowance need not be 
accounted for by the recipient. 

 
Depending on the city’s budget situation, the CPI increase isn’t always applied.  
According to the City Council Member Information Handbook, the expense 
allowance rates for FY 2008/09 are $1,354.45 per month for councilmembers and 
$1899.49 per month for the mayor.  These rates were reduced by 10% in the 
adopted FY 2009/10 budget, to $1,219.01 per month for councilmembers and 
$1,709.54 for the mayor. 
 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 3 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

Given that this expense allowance is paid without regard to actual expenses, it 
should be considered a second salary.  Therefore total councilmember salary is 
currently $1,394.01 per month or $16,728.12 per year, and total mayoral salary is 
currently $1,884.54 per month or $22,614.48 per year.  The mayoral total is 
approximately 35% greater than the councilmember total. 
 
This second salary setup has been in effect at least since the adoption of the 1966 
charter (I have not checked farther back than that).  The current charter section 302 
language survives nearly unchanged (except for pluralizing “amount”) from the 
city council portion of the corresponding 1966 charter section: 
 

Section 502. Compensation. The members of the City Council 
including the Mayor shall receive as compensation for their services 
as such a monthly salary in the sum of One Hundred Seventy-Five 
Dollars per month. In addition, each member of the City Council shall 
receive reimbursement on order of the City Council for Council 
authorized traveling and other expenses when on official duty upon 
submission of itemized expense account therefor. In addition, 
members shall receive such reasonable and adequate amount as may 
be established by ordinance, which amount shall be deemed to be 
reimbursement to them of other routine and ordinary expenses, losses 
and costs imposed upon them by virtue of their serving as City 
Councilmen. 
 
The City Clerk and City Treasurer shall each receive a compensation 
for their services as such to be fixed by ordinance, which 
compensation for such services shall not be increased or diminished 
after their election or during their respective terms of office. 

 
The first expense allowance ordinance provided for by the 1966 charter was 
ordinance 1346 adopted on 09/05/1967 which created a non-itemized expense 
allowance of $125 per month for councilmembers and the mayor. 
 
On 06/06/1972, a charter amendment was submitted to the voters to alter 
councilmember compensation to follow general law, but it went down to crushing 
defeat by a 3-1 margin: 
 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 4 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

502. COMPENSATION. Compensation for members of the City 
Council, City Clerk, and City Treasurer, shall be paid as in general 
law cities in the State of California in accordance with the provisions 
of Sections 36515, 36516 and 36517 of the Government Code of the 
State of California as the same now exist or hereafter may be 
amended. In addition, each member of the City Council shall receive 
reimbursement on order of the City Council for Council authorized 
traveling and other expenses when on official duty upon submission 
of itemized expense account therefor. In addition, members shall 
receive such reasonable and adequate amount as may be established 
by ordinance, which amount shall be deemed to be reimbursement to 
them of other routine and ordinary expenses, losses and costs imposed 
upon them by virtue of their serving as City Councilmen. 

 
Ordinance 2079 was adopted on 07/19/1976 which kept the non-itemized expense 
allowance at $125 per month, but clarified that additional itemized expense 
reimbursements were allowed, and provided department head fringe benefits for 
councilmembers and the mayor. 
 
On 06/06/1978, another charter amendment was submitted to the voters to alter 
councilmember compensation, but it also went down to defeat, this time by an 
approximate 3-2 margin (sorry, the detailed charter language eludes me on this 
one, so the ballot summary will have to do): 
 

Shall Section 502 of the existing city charter be amended to provide 
that the compensation for the Mayor and the City Council members be 
set in accordance with a sliding scale based upon the population of the 
city so that compensation may vary from a minimum of $400 per 
month to a maximum of $600 per month, and further providing for 
reimbursement of certain specified expenses in addition to such 
monthly compensation? 

 
Ordinance 2566 was adopted on 07/19/1982 which raised the allowance to $290 
per month for councilmembers and $390 per month for the mayor, and pegged 
future increases to 75% of inflation.  Note that this was right at the end of the 
“stagflation” era which featured several years of abnormally high inflation (the 
highest inflation in the past 50 years). 
 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 5 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

Ordinance 2997 was adopted on 05/01/1989 and raised the allowance to $698 per 
month for councilmembers and $936 per month for the mayor, and changed the 
indexing to 100% of inflation as measured by CPI-U for the Los Angeles / 
Anaheim / Riverside metropolitan area.  This was the most recent modification to 
HBMC 2.28.010. 
 
My survey of the council compensation practices of all California charter cities 
reveals that the vast majority of such cities rely on general law in whole or in part 
when setting compensation.  10 cities including Huntington Beach provide for 
“deemed reimbursement” expense allowances (aka second salaries) established by 
ordinance, and 8 cities (some of California’s biggest cities) use special 
commissions to set compensation. 
 
There are a smattering of alternative compensation schemes, ranging from token 
salaries ($1 per month by the city of Needles), to nominal salaries of a few hundred 
dollars per month, to salaries indexed to CPI, to salaries indexed to judges’ 
salaries.   One of the most intriguing alternative schemes is to tie compensation to 
area household income.  Inglewood (Article V, Section 4) reset their 
councilmember salaries to be no greater than the average household income of Los 
Angeles County as determined by the U.S. Census.  Santa Barbara (Section 502) 
pegs their councilmember and mayor salaries to 80% and 100% respectively of the 
annual Area Median Income of Santa Barbara County as determined by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
The key elements of general law compensation from Government Code Section 
36516 are: 
 

• Population-based compensation ceilings. 
• The council may increase compensation beyond these ceilings by submitting 

a measure to the electors for their approval. 
• The council may by ordinance increase compensation beyond these ceilings 

by not more than 5% per year since the previous adjustment. 
• Ordinances that provide for automatic future compensation increases are 

prohibited. 
 
It is my opinion that Government Code Section 36516 is an improvement over 
current city practice, and so my recommended action uses Section 36516 as the 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 6 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

template.  However, since our current councilmember compensation is way over 
the Section 36516 ceiling for our population size, my proposal grandfathers in the 
current compensation amounts.  Given the current state of the economy, plus 
strong antipathy towards politicians at the national and state levels, I feel that the 
new charter should not immediately increase councilmember compensation beyond 
current levels (any such increase could very well turn into a “poison pill” that 
would cause the new charter to be defeated at the polls).  I also feel that a salary 
decrease is not warranted either, since the city budget has so far managed to avoid 
staff salary cuts despite a very challenging fiscal environment.  So my goal is to 
stay compensation-neutral. 
 
Following general law on compensation still allows the city council direct control 
over compensation, as long as the year-to-year increases don’t exceed 5%.  
Anything greater than 5% will require voter approval, which provides for 
accountability. 
 
My recommended action recognizes the extra responsibilities of the mayor 
compared to the rest of the council, and allows the current compensation 
differential to continue. 
 
Self-interest is reduced by preventing compensation increases from taking effect 
during a councilmember’s term.  If you are going to vote yourself a compensation 
increase by ordinance, you won’t benefit from it unless you win re-election; this 
applies to mayoral compensation as well.  Note that if the council wishes to 
increase compensation immediately, such a measure can be put to the electors for 
approval. 
 
Transparency is increased by doing away with the “deemed reimbursement” 
expense allowance.  As implemented by Huntington Beach and the other cities, 
these unitemized reimbursements are really nothing more than a loophole to get 
around charter compensation limits.  I would much rather see forthright, upfront 
discussions about councilmember compensation in Huntington Beach. 
 
One alternative action worth further discussion is whether or not to use some 
percentage of household income to index council compensation or to set a hard 
compensation ceiling.  Such an index or ceiling would in effect constitute private 
sector style “pay for performance”.  If the council manages the city in such a way 
that the local economy grows and salaries increase, then the council should deserve 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 7 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

increased pay for a job well done.  On the other hand, if the council makes poor 
decisions that harm the local economy through impeding economic growth or only 
growing low-wage service sector jobs, then the council should see their own pay 
reduced. 
 
Of course, household income is subject to larger economic factors well beyond the 
council’s control, but having council compensation tied to the larger economy 
would allow the council to demonstrate empathy with city residents who are 
subject to the same economic forces. 
 
One problem with indexing to household income is the availability of reliable, 
current data.  U.S. Census American Community Survey (ACS) data lags behind 
by one to two years (2008 is the most recent year that is currently available), and 
U.S. HUD data does not appear to be collected at the city level for Huntington 
Beach.  So finding up-to-date city-level data may be difficult based on a few hours 
of web searching that I did.  Thus council compensation tied to household income 
would tend to lag a bit behind the events that impacted household income. 
 
Since the voters have defeated compensation charter amendments twice before, it 
would be undesirable to have compensation act as a “poison pill” that would 
prevent adoption of other charter reforms. 
 
Fortunately the historical record provides a solution for avoiding the “poison pill” 
problem.  The 1978 charter revision effort largely revised the entire charter.  But in 
recognition of the controversial nature of several amendments, including council 
compensation, the ballot for the 06/06/1978 election was very cleverly organized.  
The main measure on the ballot was for replacing the entire charter except for the 
controversial sections amended in subsequent measures on the same ballot.  This 
proved to be a wise decision, because the main measure passed to revise nearly the 
entire charter, and all but one of the controversial auxiliary measures went down to 
defeat. 
 
I strongly recommend that the commission adopt a similar ballot strategy for any 
controversial issues if possible. 
 
References: 
 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 8 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

• Inglewood charter - 
http://www.cityofinglewood.org/depts/cityclerks/city_charter.asp 

• Santa Barbara charter - 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/Ordinances/Charter/ 

 
Attachments: 
 

• California Government Code Section 36516 
• City of Huntington Beach ordinances 1346, 2079, 2566, 2997 

 

http://www.cityofinglewood.org/depts/cityclerks/city_charter.asp
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/Ordinances/Charter/


REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 9 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

California Government Code Section 36516 
 
36516.  (a) A city council may enact an ordinance providing that 
each member of the city council shall receive a salary, the amount of 
which shall be determined by the following schedule: 
   (1) In cities up to and including 35,000 in population, up to and 
including three hundred dollars ($300) per month; 
   (2) In cities over 35,000 up to and including 50,000 in 
population, up to and including four hundred dollars ($400) per 
month; 
   (3) In cities over 50,000 up to and including 75,000 in 
population, up to and including five hundred dollars ($500) per 
month. 
   (4) In cities over 75,000 up to and including 150,000 in 
population, up to and including six hundred dollars ($600) per month. 
   (5) In cities over 150,000 up to and including 250,000 in 
population, up to and including eight hundred dollars ($800) per 
month. 
   (6) In cities over 250,000 population, up to and including one 
thousand dollars ($1,000) per month. 
   For the purposes of this section the population shall be 
determined by the last preceding federal census, or a subsequent 
census, or estimate validated by the Department of Finance. 
   (b) At any municipal election, the question of whether city 
council members shall receive compensation for services, and the 
amount of compensation, may be submitted to the electors. If a 
majority of the electors voting at the election favor it, all of the 
council members shall receive the compensation specified in the 
election call.  Compensation of council members may be increased 
beyond the amount provided in this section or decreased below the 
amount in the same manner. 
   (c) Compensation of council members may be increased beyond the 
amount provided in this section by an ordinance or by an amendment to 
an ordinance but the amount of the increase may not exceed an amount 
equal to 5 percent for each calendar year from the operative date of 
the last adjustment of the salary in effect when the ordinance or 
amendment is enacted. No salary ordinance shall be enacted or amended 
which provides for automatic future increases in salary. 
   (d) Unless specifically authorized by another statute, a city 
council may not enact an ordinance providing for compensation to city 
council members in excess of that authorized by the procedures 
described in subdivisions (a) to (c), inclusive. For the purposes of 
this section, compensation includes payment for service by a city 
council member on a commission, committee, board, authority, or 
similar body on which the city council member serves. If the other 
statute that authorizes the compensation does not specify the amount 
of compensation, the maximum amount shall be one hundred fifty 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 10 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

dollars ($150) per month for each commission, committee, board, 
authority, or similar body. 
   (e) Any amounts paid by a city for retirement, health and welfare, 
and federal social security benefits shall not be included for 
purposes of determining salary under this section provided the same 
benefits are available and paid by the city for its employees. 
   (f) Any amounts paid by a city to reimburse a council member for 
actual and necessary expenses pursuant to Section 36514.5 shall not 
be included for purposes of determining salary pursuant to this 
section. 



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 11 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Huntington Beach Ordinance 1346 



I

I

I

ORDINANCE NO. 1346

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH; AMENDING THE
HUNTINGTON BEACH ORDINANCE CODE BY ADD
ING CHAPTER 11, ARTICLE III AND SECTION
1111 RELATING TO EXPENSE ALLOWANCE FOR

CITY COUNCILMEN.

The City council of the City of Huntington Beach does

ordain as follows:

Section 1. That Chapter 11 is hereby added to the

Huntington Beach Ordinance code to read in words and figures

as follows:

CHAPTER 11

COUNCIL

Section 2. That Article III is hereby added to the

Huntington Beach Ordinance Code to read in words and figures

as follows;

ARTICLE III

COMPENSATION

section J. That section 1111 is hereby added to

Article III of the Huntington Beach ordinance code to r:ead in

words and figures as follows:

Section 1111. Expense Allowance for City Councilmen. There i

shall be allowed to each member or the City Council
the sum of/One Hundred Twenty-five Dollars ($125.00) per month.
Said allowance is authorized to reimburse said members of the
City Council for expense of attending meetings, traveling to
and from their usual place of business to said meetings, travel
ing to and from property under consideration for action by the
City Council, and all other expenses of their duties as Council-

1.



I

I

I

Ord. NO. 1346

men. The expense authorized hereunder need not be accounted for
by the recipients, but no other expenses shall be allowed except
upon specific authorization therefor by the City Council.

section 4, The City Clerk shall certify to the passage

and adoption of this ordinance and shall cause the same to be.

published by one insertion in the Huntington Beach News, a

weekly newspaper, printed, published and circulated in the

City of Huntington Beach, California, and thirty (30) days

after the adoption thereof, the same shall take effect and be

in force.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City co~cil of the City of

Huntington Beach, at a regular meeting held on the 5th day

of __S_e~p_t_e_rn_b_e_r__, 1967.

C y cer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

d;-o~~Ja/I!
LOU ANN MARSHALL,
Asst.City Attorney

2.



I

Ord. No. 1346

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ORANGE ) ss:
CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH )

I, PAUL C. JONES, the duly elected, qualified, and

acting City Clerk of the City of Huntington Beach and ex

officio Clerk of the City Council of the said City, do hereby

certify that the whole number of members of the City Council

of the City of Huntington Beach is seven; that the foregoing

ordinance was read to said City Council at a regular __

meeting thereof held on the 21st day of_A_u_g~u_s_t _

19 67 , and was again read to said City Council at a regular

___________ meeting thereof held on the 5th day of September ,

19~, and was passed and adopted by the affirmative vote of

more than a majority of all the members of said City Council.

I

I

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Councilmen:

eoen, Bartlett, Gisler, Green, Shipley

Coqncilmen:

None

Councilmen:

Kaufman. Stewart

I. PAUL C



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 12 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Huntington Beach Ordinance 2079 



I ORDINANCE NO. 2079

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH
AMENDING THE HUNTINGTON BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE
BY AMENDING SECTION 2.28.010 THEREOF AND ADDING
SECTION 2.28.020 THERETO, PERTAINING TO EXPENSE
ALLOWANCE AND FRINGE BENEFITS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

The City Council of the City of Huntington Beach does

ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. The Huntington Beach Municipal Code is hereby

amended by amending Section 2.28.010 to read as follows:

2.28.0l0 Expense Allowance. It is deemed reasonable and
adequate that in reimbursement of the ordinary and routine
expenSes, losses and costs imposed upon them by virtue of their
serving the city in their official capacity, each council
member, including the mayor, shall receive monthly, during
their term of office, the below-listed amount as an expense
allowance, which allowance need not be accounted for by the
recipients:I

Each Council Member, including Mayor $125

I
DPB:er

In addition thereto, each member of the city council,
including the mayor, shall receive reimbursement on order of
the city council for council-authorized traveling and other
expenses when on official duty upon submission of itemized
expense account therefor. A summary listing of such itemized
expenses for each month shall be presented to the council for
approval at the first regular meeting of the following month.
This section is intended to meet the requirements of Section
502 of the City Charter.

SECTION 2. The Huntington Beach Municipal Code is hereby

amended by adding Section 2.28.020 thereto to read as follows:

2.28.020 Fringe benefits. Each member of the city council
shall receive all fringe benefits which are granted, and in the
future shall be granted, to the department heads of the City
of Huntington Beach, and the cost of such fringe benefits shall
be included in the annual budget.

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect thirty days

after its adoption. The City Clerk shall certify to the pas

sage of this ordinance and cause same to be published within

1.



I
fifteen days after adoption in the Huntington Beach News, a

weekly newspaper of general circulation, printed and published

in Huntington Beach, California.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of

Huntington Beach at a regular meeting thereof held on the 19th

day of July, 1976.

Mayor

City, Clerk

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

.~

APPROVED BY INITIATING DEPARTMENT:

I derd~~

I
2.



I
Ord. No. 2079

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ORANGE ) ss:
CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH )

I, ALICIA M. WENTWORTH, the duly elected, qualified City

Clerk of the City of Huntington Beach and ex-officio Clerk of the

City Council of the said City, do hereby certify that the whole number

of member~ of the City Council of the City of Huntington Beach is seven;

that the foregoing ordinance was read to said City Council at a regular

~ meeting thereof held on the 6 day of __~J~u~l~y __

l~, and was again read to said City Council at a regular _

meeting thereof held on the 19 day of July ,1976, and

was passed and adopted by the affirmative vote of more than a majority of

all the members of said City Council.

I
AYES:

NOES:

Councilmen:

Bartlett,PattinaoD, CoeD, Gibbs, Siebert, Sbenkman,WiQdQr

Councilmen:

None

ABSENT: Councilmen:

None

I

City Clerk and ex-officio Clerk
of the City Council of the City
of Huntington Beach, California

I, Alicia M. Wentmrth CITY ClERf~ of the City of
Huntin:;ton "';;(:ich 2,··d (;:(.-;i·Cl() f.ler!{ e,f the City
Counc:f. d- ~':-:b:l ::2:,:;1"1-;, t;-!'<'s cnHr1?"C-9 h;J$
been pJ!..h!!. : 'i1 t" -- ," .'(';.:::h News on

.....;.:....: .:,., .J"~ I\J .~~ ..';:. '3~:Z!k.
In '-O •. c " '.-:1', I.' "" lj ' __ I' '.":',1 ',.II S·;,. -,,0 I tj•

....). ~.tr~rA M. WEN ORm .
" City Clerk



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 13 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Huntington Beach Ordinance 2566 



r

I

I

I
ahb

6/30/82

ORDINANCE NO. 2566

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH
AMENDING THE HUNTINGTON BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE
BY AMENDING SECTION 2.28.010 RELATING TO EX
PENSE ALLOWANCES FOR CITY COUNCILPERSONS

The City Council of the City of Huntington Beach does ordain

as follows:

SECTION 1. The Huntington Beach Municipal Code is hereby

amended by amending section 2.28.010 to read as follows:

2.28.010 Expense allowance. It is deemed reasonable and
adequate that in reimbursement of the ordinary and routine ex
penses, losses and costs imposed upon them by virtue of their
serving the city in their official capacity, each council mem
ber shall receive monthly, during his term of office the sum of
$290 per month, and the mayor shall receive the sum of $390 per
month, such sums to be adjusted annually at 75 percent of the
consumer price index for the previous year. Further, such
expense allowance need not be accounted for by the recipient.

In addition thereto, each member of the city council, in
cluding the mayor, shall receive reimbursement on order of the
city council for council-authorized travel and other expenses
when on official duty upon submission of itemized expense account
therefor, and pursuant to administrative regulations pertaining
to the payment thereof. A summary listing of such itemized ex
penses for each month shall be presented to the council for ap
proval at the first regular meeting of the following month. This
section is intended to meet the requirements of section 302
of the city Charter. Appropriations for the allowance and other
expenses provided for herein shall be included in the annual bud
get, approved by the city council.

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect thirty days

after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of

Huntington Beach at a regular meeting thereof held on the 19th

day of July , 1982.

1.



I
ATTEST':

INITIATED AND APPROVED:

Mayor Pro Tern

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

I

I

~&--------
City Ad~trator~

2.



r
I

Ord. No. 2566

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ORANGE ) ss:
CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH )

I, ALICIA M. WENTWORTH, the duly elected, qualified City

Clerk of the City of Huntington Beach and ex-officio Clerk of the

City Council of the said City, do hereby certify that the whole number

of member~ of the City Council of the City of Huntington Beach is seven;

that the foregoing ordinance was read to said City Council at a regular

_______ meeting thereof held on the 6th day of __J_u....;ly=-- _

19~, and was again read to said City Council at a regular __~__

meeting thereof held on the 19th day of July , 19 82 and

was passed and adopted by the affirmative vote of more than a majority of

all the members of said City Council.

I

AYES:

NOES:

Councilmen:

Pattjnson, Thomas. MacAllister, Bajle~, Kelly

Councilmen:

Finley

I

ABSENT: Councilmen:

Mandie

~ca~~
City Clerk and ex-officio Clerk
of the City Council of the City
of Huntington Beach, California

..... M. Wentworth CITY CLERK of the CIty.f

ftutrtirtBt->n Beach and ex·offltio Clerk of the City
~. dQ he, eby certify that a synopsis of this

....u :-.as been pUblished in the Huntington

But:h Illtd'tlP'7'dent on

""--- ~"..,, ;j~ ~.7.. 19..f.~ ..
iii~~~~tht~;{Cit~Cpark; of said City•

....djL~~.!!. ..../!J..~ ...t!!~.(!{f..~p.!1:.f.h ..

.-F 1/ ~ - City Clerk

._..-..... """_~_ : c.~ ..
Deputy City Clerk



REQUEST FOR CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION ACTION 
 

MEETING DATE(S): 10/06/2009, 10/20/2009 
 
 

 - 14 - 9/30/2009 11:19 AM 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Huntington Beach Ordinance 2997 



I
ORDINANCE NO. 2997

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH
AMENDING THE HUNTINGTON BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE

BY AMENDING SECTION 2.28.010 RELATING TO
EXPENSE ALLOWANCES FOR CITY COUNCILPERSONS

The City Council of the City of Huntington Beach does

ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. The Huntington Beach Municipal Code is

I

I

hereby amended by amending section 2.28.010 to read as follows:

2.28.010 Expense allowance. It is deemed reasonable and

adequate that in reimbursement of the ordinary and routine

expenses, losses and costs imposed upon them by virtue of their

serving the city in their official capacity, each council

member shall receive monthly, during his term of office the sum

of $698 per month, and the mayor shall receive the sum of $936

per month, such sums to be adjusted annually by the consumer

price index for all urban consumers, all items, 1982-84 equals

100, published by the United States Deptartment of Labor,

Bureau of Labor Statistics, for the Los Angeles/Anaheim/

Riverside Metropolitan Area. Further, such expense allowance

need not be accounted for by the recipient.

In addition thereto, each member of the city council,

including the mayor, shall be reimbursed pursuant to the city's

business expense policy for council authorized travel and other

expenses when on official duty upon submission of itemized

expense account therefor. This section is intended to meet the

requirements of section 302 of the city Charter. Appropria-

tions for the allowance and other expenses provided for herein

-1-



the

I
shall be included in the annual budget approved by the city

council.

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect thirty days

after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of

Huntington Beach at a regular meeting thereof held on

1st day of _M_a_y , 1989.

~LLLQ
' Mayor

I

I

ATTEST:

\

>';,/

REVIEWED AND ~PPROVED:

City Administrator

sg

-2-

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

rM~~~
INITIATED AND APPROVED:

2997



I STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ORANGE \
CITY or HUNTINGTON BEACH ~

ss:

Ord 0 No. 2997

I, CONNIE BROCKWAY, the duly elected, qualified City,
Clerk of the City of Huntington Beach and ex-officio Clerk of the

City Council of the said City, do hereby certify that the whole number

of members of the C'ity Council of the City of HWlti Il~ Lon Beach is seven;

that the foregoing ordinance was read to said City Council at a regular

____. meeting therof held on the 17th day of__~A~p~r.~il~ ___

19 89 , and was again }~ead to said City Council at a regular._ .._.... _

meeting therof held on the 1st day of May
----=:--._~---

1089 .J __, ana

I
was passed and adopted by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of

all the members of said City Council.

AYES: Councilmembers:

MacAllister, Bannister, Mays, Silva, Erskine

NOES: Councilmembers:

Green, Winchell

ABSENT: Councilmembers:

None

I
I, Connie BiOckway, CITY Clerk of the City of
Huntington Beach and ex-officlo Clerk of the City
Council r:~, hereby certify that asynopsis of this
orr3;n~" .';;;$ been published in the Daily Pilot on

~ ,19 8,"1
In (lecQre,:;;,.:; with t!'-l!;;":""""~(S,.b-ar,:-"'er--o'L:fLaid City.

ity Clerk and ex-offl
of the City Council 0 the City
of Huntington Beach, California



Office of City Attorney

The City Attorney’s Office represents and 
advises the City Council and all City 
officers in all matters of law pertaining to 
their offices. 

Advisory Division

Litigation Division



Leonie Mulvihill
Senior Deputy City Attorney

Dan Ohl
Deputy City Attorney

Mike Vigliotta
Deputy City Attorney

Paul D'Alessandro
Assistant City Attorney - Advisory

Neal Moore
Senior Deputy City Attorney

John Fujii
Senior Deputy City Attorney

Sarah Sutton
Deputy City Attorney

Bobby Dominguez
Investigator

Scott Field
Assistant City Attorney - Litigation

Anita Balkee
Administrative Assistant

Karen Copeland
Legal Assistant

Chris Leonhard
Legal Assistant

Joan Naideth
Legal Assistant

Thuy Vi
Legal Assistant

Joan Giguere
Law Office Manager

Jennifer McGrath
City Attorney



Charter Section 309. 

CITY ATTORNEY. POWERS AND 
DUTIES.

To become and remain eligible for City 
Attorney the person elected or 
appointed shall be an attorney at law, 
duly licensed as such under the laws of 
the State of California, and shall have 
been engaged in the practice of law in 
this State for at least three years prior to 
his election or appointment. . . . 



(a) Represent and advise the City Council 
and all City officers in all matters of law 

pertaining to their offices.

*Multiple Clients - City Council, City Administrator, 
Department Heads, and City staff  (not citizenry)

*No advice for anything outside the scope of work –
e.g. divorce, small claims, conflict of interest

*Obligation to defend taxpayer money even when City 
Council feels differently; e.g. invocation; mobile home 
park conversion ordinance



(b) Prosecute on behalf of the people any or 
all criminal cases arising from violation of 

the provisions of this Charter or of City 
ordinances and such state misdemeanors as 
the City has the power to prosecute, unless 

otherwise provided by the City Council.

*Neither City Council nor staff can direct 
regarding criminal prosecution.

*City Attorney is not the District Attorney.

*Public Nuisance Task Force  (1998)

*Administrative Citation Program (1998)



(c) Represent and appear for the City in any or all 
actions or proceedings in which the City is 
concerned or is a party, and represent and 

appear for any City officer or employee, or 
former City officer or employee, in any or all 

civil actions or proceedings in which such 
officer or employee is concerned or is a party 

for any act arising out of his employment or by 
reason of his official capacity.

*Multiple Clients - Council?  Staff?  Retiree?  Scope 
of Work?  

*Litigation – slip-and-fall; auto accidents; excessive 
force; writs, labor, breach of contact 



(d) Attend all regular meetings of the City 
Council, unless excused, and give his 
advice or opinion orally or in writing 

whenever requested to do so by the City 
Council or by any of the boards or 

officers of the City.

*Regular Council Meetings 

*Special/Closed Session Meetings

*Planning Commission Meetings



(e) Approve the form of all contracts made 
by and all bonds and insurance given to 
the City, endorsing his approval thereon 

in writing.

*Contract Process

*Insurance & Indemnification Waivers

*Bonds & Leases



(f) Prepare any and all proposed ordinances 
and City Council resolutions and 

amendments thereto.

*Nudity Ordinance

*Campaign Contribution Reform

*Business License Regulations

*Recreational Vehicle Ordinance

*Medical Marijuana Dispensary Regulation



(g) Devote such time to the duties of his 
office and at such place as may be 

specified by the City Council.

(h) Perform such legal functions and duties 
incident to the execution of the foregoing 

powers as may be necessary.

(i) Surrender to his successor all books, 
papers, files, and documents pertaining to 

the City's affairs.



My Philosopy

Participate in the daily operations of the 
City to proactively provide legal guidance 

throughout the process while 
acknowledging that there is always more 

than one way to achieve an objective.    
















































	AGENDA 100609
	MINUTES 090109
	MINUTES 091509
	Elected Officials and the Charter
	Elected Officials and the Charter
	The Strong Mayor Council System
	The Commission Plan
	The Council Manager 
	Concessions by the systems
	Attorney, Clerk, Treasurer�	
	How California Cities Do It: the Big 8�
	How California Cities Do It: The Upper Middle
	How California Cities Do It: The Rest
	Observations

	Elected Mayor - 10-01-09
	Sheet1

	Other Elected Offices
	Sheet1

	Bixby Info Packet 10-06-09
	Bixby Cover Sheet 100609
	Bixby Info for 10-06-09 - Electeds
	City Election Summary
	1913 to Present
	06/06/1978 Ballot Measures
	06/06/1978 Ballot Arguments
	11/06/1984 Ballot Arguments
	03/26/1996 Ballot Arguments

	Bixby Info for 10-06-09 - Compensation
	California Government Code Section 36516
	Huntington Beach Ordinance 1346
	Huntington Beach Ordinance 2079
	Huntington Beach Ordinance 2566
	Huntington Beach Ordinance 2997


	McGrath's Handout - 10-06-09 No Background
	Office of City Attorney
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	My Philosopy

	McGrath's Handout - 10-06-09-B



